Audit and Scrutiny Committee 12 November 2019

IRVINE, 12 November 2019 - At a Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee of North Ayrshire Council at 10.00 a.m.

Present

Marie Burns, Margaret George, Joy Brahim, Alan Hill, Tom Marshall, Donald Reid and John Sweeney.

In Attendance

L. Friel, Executive Director and P. Doak, Senior Manager (Internal Audit, Risk and Fraud) (Finance and Corporate Support); R. Arthur, Interim Head of Service (Connected Communities), (Communities); C. Cameron, Chief Finance and Transformation Officer (Health and Social Care Partnership); and A. Fraser, Head of Democratic Services, N. Sugden, Policy and Performance Officer, and E. Gray, Committee Services Officer (Chief Executive's Service).

Chair

Councillor Burns in the Chair.

Apologies

None.

1. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest by Members in terms of Standing Order 10 and Section 5 of the Code of Conduct for Councillors.

2. Minutes

The Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 10 September 2019 and the Special Meeting held on 24 September 2019 were confirmed and the Minutes signed in accordance with Paragraph 7 (1) of Schedule 7 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Councillor Brahim joined the meeting at this point.

3. Health and Social Care Partnership (HSCP) Budget Monitoring

Submitted a report by Caroline Whyte, Chief Finance and Transformation Officer on the HSCP projected outturn for the financial year as at August 2019. The budget monitoring report and appendices which were presented to the IJB on 24 October 2019 were attached as an appendix to the report.

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:-

• the budget recovery plan and whether assurances could be given that the actions taken will be effective in reducing the current overspend;

- the difference between Fostering, Fostering Xtra and Private Fostering and the reasons behind the different rates which are paid for each;
- the possibility of including the number of service users when presenting the costs associated with care at home packages in future reports;
- the practice of commissioning beds in care homes and the impact which this has on the budget; and
- the potential impact of Scottish Government policy changes and the process and timescales for implementation of Scottish Government policies.

The Committee agreed to (a) note the financial position with regard to the Health and Social Care Partnership; and (b) continue to receive regular update reports throughout financial year 2019/2020. request that a special meeting of the Committee be arranged to examine the finances of the HSCP and their recovery plan in more detail, and invite the Director of Health and Social Care to attend.

4. Audit Scotland: Principles for Community Empowerment

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Interim) (Communities) on the new Audit Scotland approach to Community Empowerment. The Principles for Community Empowerment document, which aims to raise awareness of community empowerment and promote a shared understanding across scrutiny bodies, was set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:-

- North and South Ayrshire Councils being invited to represent local authorities on the Community Empowerment Advisory Group and the message this sends about the work already being carried out in Ayrshire in terms of community empowerment; and
- staffing levels in the Communities directorate and whether they are adequate to manage future workloads.

The Committee agreed to note the new Audit Scotland approach to Community Empowerment.

5. Public Performance Reporting

Submitted a report by the Head of Democratic Services on 2018/19 Public Performance Reporting and the draft Annual Public Performance Report 2018/19. The Annual Performance Report Summary was set out at Appendix 1 to the report, the Annual Performance Exception Report at Appendix 2 and the full draft Annual Performance Report 2018/19 at Appendix 3.

Discussion took place around the trend of decreasing footfall in town centres across North Ayrshire and the different contributing factors including business rates, out of town shopping centres, internet shopping and rental costs. The Committee agreed to (a) note (i) the status of the Council's performance indicators at Appendices One and Two to the report; and (ii) the Annual Public Performance Report 2018/19 set out at Appendix Three; and (b) request that a report by the Head of Service (Economic Development and Regeneration) be brought to a future meeting on the state of town centres in North Ayrshire.

6. National Scrutiny Plan 2019/2020

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) on the National Scrutiny Plan. The plan identifies three areas of planned scrutiny activity for North Ayrshire Council during 2019/2020 which are a best value audit (Audit Scotland/Deloitte), a review of career information, advice and guidance services (Education Scotland) and a review of services for people who are homeless (Scottish Housing Regulator). A link to the full plan was provided in the report.

The Committee agreed to note (i) the National Scrutiny Plan and (ii) the scrutiny work which is scheduled for North Ayrshire Council in 2019/20.

7. Internal Audit and Corporate Fraud Action Plans: Quarter 2 Update

Submit report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) on progress made by Council Services in implementing the agreed actions from Internal Audit and Corporate Fraud reports as at 30 September 2019. Full details of the seven actions which were not completed within the agreed timescales were set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

The Senior Manager (Internal Audit, Risk and Fraud) noted that the number of overdue actions has fallen in comparison to previous years and that the current outstanding actions are of low priority.

That the Committee agreed to note (i) the current position with the implementation of Internal Audit and Corporate Fraud actions; and (ii) that those Services which have not implemented actions within the previously agreed timescales will be challenged.

8. Internal Audit Plan 2019/20: Mid-Year Update

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) on progress made in delivering the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. The Internal Audit Quarter 2 Progress Report was set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

The Senior Manager (Internal Audit, Risk and Fraud) provided details of two audits which have been removed from the plan (Welfare Reform and Universal Credit and Property Asset Management) and one which has been added from the reserve audit list (Additional Special Needs Schools).

That the Committee (a) notes the mid-year position and (b) approves the withdrawal of two audits from the plan.

9. Corporate Fraud Team: Mid-year Progress

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) which provided a mid-year progress report on the work of the Corporate Fraud Team.

Discussion took place around a case detailed in the report which, following a referral by the corporate fraud team to the Procurator Fiscal, resulted in a £750 being issued to a letting agent who breeched the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 by facilitating the occupation of an unregistered house in multiple occupation. Members questioned whether this level of fine will be seen as a deterrent for other letting agents and what action can be taken by other regulatory bodies including the Licensing Committee.

The Committee agreed to note the work carried out by the Corporate Fraud Team between April and September 2019.

10. Strategic Risk Register 2019/2020: Mid-Year Update

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) which provided a mid-year update on the progress with actions related to the Strategic Risk Register. The Strategic Risk Report 2019/20 with detailed actions was provided at Appendix 1 to the report.

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:-

- the formula used for calculating a total risk score and who is responsible for assigning numeric values to the likelihood and impact of each risk;
- why climate change does not appear on the risk register despite the Council declaring a climate emergency in October 2019;
- the evaluation process for climate change as a risk to North Ayrshire and why flood prevention appears to be the main focus over other issues associated from climate change; and
- risk associated with the financial position of the Health and Social Care Partnership and a number of contributing factors including the delay of the opening of Trindlemoss.

The Committee agreed to (a) note the mid-year update on the 2019/20 Strategic Risk Register; (b) request that a report by the Director of Place be brought to a future meeting on the Council's overall approach to climate change; and (c) request that a special meeting of the Committee be arranged to examine the finances of the HSCP and their recovery plan in more detail, and invite the Director of Health and Social Care to attend.

11. Internal Audit Reports Issued

Submitted a report by the Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support) on the findings of Internal Audit work completed between August and September 2019. Details of internal control reviews around music tuition, the Transport Hub and Better Off North Ayrshire were provided as Appendix 1 to the report.

The Senior Manager (Internal Audit, Risk and Fraud) highlighted the new style of report which consists of a shorter report and an action plan for each audit. The new style should allow officers to spend less time writing reports and therefore allocate more time to audit work.

The Committee agreed to note the outcomes from the Internal Audit work completed as set out in the report.

12. Urgent Items

Councillor Hill raised the issue of the use of permitted development by the Council and questioned whether this is an area which the Committee should receive a report on in the future. Reference was made to a development a Flatt Road, Largs where work was carried out under permitted development legislation and resulted in the erection of a 40ft chimney which was not clear in the plans due to the omission of elevation drawing.

Councillor Hill felt that the Committee should be made aware of how often development has been carried out under this legislation; what circumstances have led to this legislation being used; and what scrutiny has been carried out to date.

Officers advised that Council housing developments are permitted development under the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 providing they comply with the Local Development Plan. Otherwise planning permission is required. The Cabinet, at its meeting on 29 October 2019, considered the Strategic Housing Investment Plan 2020-25 and noted that all future Council housing developments will now obtain a 'Certificate of Lawful Use Development' from the Council's Planning Service. This will provide a certificate that each site within the SHIP has been considered against the full terms of the adopted Local Development Plan.

The Committee agreed to note the information provided by officers.

The meeting ended at 11.20 a.m.

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 27 November 2019

IRVINE, 27 November 2019 - At a Special Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee of North Ayrshire Council at 1.30 p.m.

Present

Marie Burns, Margaret George, Joy Brahim, Alan Hill, Tom Marshall, Donald Reid and John Sweeney.

In Attendance

C. Hatton, Chief Executive; L. Friel, Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Support); S. Brown, Director and C. Cameron, Chief Finance and Transformation Officer (Health and Social Care Partnership), T. Bowers, Head of Service (Mental Health) and A. Sutherland, Head of Children, Families and Criminal Justice (North Ayrshire Health and Social Care Partnership) and A. Little, Committee Services Officer (Chief Executive's Service).

Chair

Councillor Burns in the Chair.

1. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest by Members in terms of Standing Order 10 and Section 5 of the Code of Conduct for Councillors.

3. North Ayrshire Integrated Joint Board Financial Position

Submitted report by Caroline Whyte, Chief Finance and Transformation Officer on the financial position of the North Ayrshire Integrated Joint Board and plans to mitigate the current projected overspend.

The budget monitoring report and appendices for Period 6, which were presented to the IJB on 21 November 2019, were attached as Appendix 1 to the report. Appendix 2 provided Supplementary Demand Pressure Information and the Integration Authorities financial performance for Quarter 1 of financial year 2019/20 was outlined at Appendix 3. Audit Scotland's report on NHS in Scotland 2019 was provided at Appendix 4. Appendix 5 presented the Scottish Government's Medium-Term Health and Social Care Financial Framework (October 2018) report. The Scottish Parliament's Health and Sport Committee's report – Looking ahead to the Scottish Government – Health Budget 2020-21 (October 2019) was attached at Appendix 6. Appendix 7 outlined the Health and Social Care Partnership "thinking differently doing better" Engagement Resources.

The Committee received a presentation on the North Ayrshire Integration Joint Board 2019/20 budget and Transformation Update, which provided information on:-

• The context of the Partnership's financial position noting that the HSCP do not anticipate being able to repay any of its debt to the Council in 2019/20;

- The national position for IJBs in respect of their quarter 1 projected outturns;
- North Ayrshire 65+ and older age groups population census information, including estimates and continuity projections;
- Budget pressures and the net investment position;
- Previous approved savings plans, delivered savings and the shortfall in savings achieved;
- 2019/20 savings that included targeted, achieved and remaining savings;
- Key areas for 2019/20 savings;
- Transformation plans;
- Older people managed waiting lists;
- The Recovery Plan;
- Budget risks and risks and challenges; and
- Features supporting health and social care integration.

Members asked questions and were provided with further information in relation to:-

- A review of Learning Disabilities adult community packages that is being undertaken by a dedicated review team, co-ordinated on a prioritised list to ensure all reviews are up to date and appropriate and equitable levels of care are being provided;
- Adult Community support framework which will present additional opportunities for reviews and payment only for the actual hours of care delivered;
- The Improvement Plan that has more checks and balances in place to ensure the projections are more accurate and figures are more current;
- Projections for Care Home placements and Children's Residential Placements that would have been met if the demands had not increased;
- Various demands that cannot be forecast, such as 6 children from the same family requiring foster care and unplanned secure and remands placements as well as decisions made by the Children's Panel;
- Thinking Differently, Doing Better that is all about people and making people's experience of health and social care services in North Ayrshire better;
- The use of community facilities and social supports to assist people to remain at home and part of their community, whilst reducing the need for services such as day care;
- Supported Accommodation models supported by technology that will reduce 24-hour care for adults in the community;
- Work with colleagues in Education and Housing to support young people to remain in school and at home and to bring back to their communities young people who have been in residential placements;
- Four Scottish IJBs that are underspent and work that is planned to learn lessons from their achievements, including a visit that is planned to Angus Council;
- A range of factors such as differing financial settlements, service costs and reserve levels that make comparisons between Scottish IJBs complex
- The Primary Care Plan that will join up services and improve hospital aftercare;
- Weekly cross-service progress meeting that are held to track progress and ensure progress is achieved within the required timescales and the Recovery Plan that provides a target for Managers to achieve;

- A whole system approach, including new models of working that will maximise the capacity of teams, coupled with a change in how we deliver services that takes time to embed and realise savings and
- Anticipation that main pressure for 2020/21 will centre around learning disability and care at home.

The Committee commented on the significant progress by other Council services in achieving their planned savings. Funding the overspend by the Health and Social Care Partnership has had a financial impact on the Council's budget and other Council services and could not be sustained

The Committee agreed to (a) note the report; and (b) continue to receive IJB financial monitoring reports to each meeting of the Committee, including progress on delivery of savings and the Recovery Plan with further information on the anticipated position at the start of 2020/21.

The meeting ended at 3.05 p.m.